To

Taishete Mehta & Associates
CHARTERED ACCOUNTARNTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Members of
Neelkamal Realtors Suburban Private Limited

Report on the Audit of Financial Statements

Opinion

1.

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Neelkamal Realtors Suburban
Private Limited (“the company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 2023, and
the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the Statement of
Changes in Equity and the Staternent of Cash Flows for the year then ended on that date, and
notes to financial statements including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
exptanatory information {hereinafter referred to as ‘the financial statements’).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the
Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
(indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015, as amended, and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the company as at 315t March, 2023, the profit
and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that
date.

Basis for Opinion

3.

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section
of our report. We are independent of the company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Material uncertainty related to going concern

4,

The company s a subsidiary of D B Realty Limited. In the draft Independent Auditor's Report of
the statutory auditors on the consolidated financial statements of D B Realty Limited, it is
mentioned that various debt obligations within next 12 months are higher than the liquid current
assets, which could result in significant uncertainty on the Group ability o meset these debt
obligations and continue as going concern. However, based on the management's assertions,
the consolidated financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis, In view of the same,
the financial statements of the company are prepared on a going concern basis.

Qur opinion is not qualified in respect of malters stated here-in-above. In respect of the above
matter, attention was also drawn by us in our earlier audit report of previous financial year.
However, any change in conclusion in the Independent Auditor’s Report on the consolidated
financial statements of D B Realty Limited for the year ended 31st March, 2023, will have a
corresponding change in our conclusion. .
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Key Audit Matters

5.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance
in our audit of the financial statements of the current year. These maiters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. In addition to the matter described
in the Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concem section, the key audit matier to be
communicated in our report is as under.

Recognition of Revenue and valuation of project work-in-progress.

The company is constructing a real estate project, viz "DB Ozone” on the land situated at Dahisar
(East) known as Mumbai. Revenue from real estate project under development is recognized
over the time from the financial year in which the agreement to sell is executed. The project work-
in-progress is valued at lower of cost or net realisable value.

Our Procedures included, but were not limited to the following:

(a) Obtained and understanding of company's process and evaluated design and tested
operative effectiveness of controls around the assessments and judgments made under
Ind AS-115 to determine the criteria for recognition of revenue and the measurement
thereof,

(b) Assessed the appropriateness of budgeted cost used by the management to estimate the
work completed in respect of contracts entered into with the customers;

(c) Assessed the professiona! competence, objectivity and capability of the personnel
engaged in estimating the budgeted cost of the Project, including obtaining certifications
from engineers / project in-charge as regards the estimation of project cost;

(d) Assessed and verified the confracts to ensure the reasonableness of the sales
consideration and the resulting revenue to be recognized therefrom,;

(e) Assessed the appropriateness of the estimated net realisable value of the unsold units;

Based on such audit procedures, we did not find any material exceptions to:

(a) Recognition of revenue from the project and trade receivables, contract liabilities, contract
assets and cost incurred to fulfii contracts relating thereto as also to the disclosures made
in compliance with the Ind AS 115, Refer note no. 2.05{a), 2.11, 25, 27, 34 and 38 of the
accompanying audited financial statements.

(b) Assessment as regards valuing the project work-in-progress at lower of cost or net
realisable value. Refer note no. 2.10, 6 and 38 of the accompanying audited financial
statements.

information Other than the financial statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

6.

The company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of other information. The
other information obtained at the date of this auditor’s report is Director’s report but does not
include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consmer Wheiher the other information is materially ihconsistent
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with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information obtained prior to the date of
this report, we conclude thal lhera is a malerial misslatement of this other Information, wa are
required ta report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

7.

The company's Board of Directors is responsible for the maliers staled in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of
the flinanciul pusition, financlal performance, total comprehensiva ncome, char ges in equily and
cash tlows of the company in accordance with the Ind AS and accounting principles generally
aceepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assats nf the company and
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and mainlenance of adequate internal financial controls,
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a lrue
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, Board of Directors is responsible for assessing lhe
company’s abhility to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors
either intends to liquidate the company or to ceasa nparations, or has no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company's financial reporting
process,

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

8.

Cur objeclives are (o obtain reasonable assurance about whether the linancial stalements as a
whole are free from material misstaterent, whether due to fraud or ervor, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audil conducled in accordance with SAs will always daelecl a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgmsant and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We afso:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to froud or error, design and perform audit procaduras responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficienl and appropriales to provide a basls for our opinion.
I he risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from oror, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal controt.

- Obtain an understanding of intemal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(l) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

%
Wl N
\2




° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. if we conclude thata material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
‘However, future events or conditions may cause the company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user
of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and
(ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards

From the matters communicated with those charged with govemance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters, We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

9.

10.

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order"), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the Annexure “A” a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

{a) We have sought and ublained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

(b}  Inour opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the company
so far as appears from our examination of those books;

(¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive
Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with this
report are in agreement with the books of account;

{(d)  In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014;
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(e)

®

(9)

(h)

(iv)

v}

The matter described in the material uncertainty related to going concern paragraph
above, in our opinion has an adverse effect on the functioning of the company;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 315t March,
2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors are disqualified as
on 31 March 2023, from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the
Act;

With respect to adequacy of internal financial confrols over financial reporting of the
company and operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report given
in Annexure “B”. Qur report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and
operating effectiveness of the company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting,

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the company has not paid any remuneration to its directors during the year;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

(i}  The company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position
in its financial statements. Refer note no. 32 and 32.1 of the accompanying audited
financial statements.

(il  The company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which any there were foreseeable losses.

(i) There are no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund.

(a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested by the company to or in
any other person{s) or entities, including foreign entities ("Intermediaries”), with
the understanding that the intermediary shall whether directly or indirectly lend
or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner by or on behalf of
the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of ultimate beneficiaries.

(b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds have been received by the company from any person(s) or entities
including foreign entities (“Funding Parties™) with the understanding that such
company shall whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the funding party
{ultimate beneficiaries) or provide guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate beneficiaries.

{c) Based on the audit procedures performed as considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that causes
us to believe that the above representations given by the management contain
any material misstatement.

The company has not declared op@@@n lend during the period. Hence, the
requirement of commenting on cory gf?rﬁ%ﬂ%’ﬁgc lion 123 of the Act does not arise.
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{vi) As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from
April 1, 2023, reporting under clause (g) of Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable for the year.

For Taishete Mehta & Assoclates
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Wﬂon No. 128285W
™

yo

Manisha Talshete N
Membership No. 110024 St
UDIN: 23110024BGWPCH2633

Mumbai
Date: 29-05-2023



Neelkamal Realtors Suburban Private Limited

Annexure — A to the Independent Auditore’ Report for the year ended 31 March, 2023
[Referred to in paragraph 9 under the heading “Report on other fegal and regulatory requirements” of
our report of even date]

(0

(i)

(iii)

In respect of property, plant and equipment (PPE) and intangible assets:

(a) (A} The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of PPE.

(B) The company does not own intangible assets. Therefore, paragraph 3(i)(a)(B) of the
Order is not applicable to the company.

{b) In our opinion, the PPE has been physically verified by the management at reasonable
intervals. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(¢} The company does not own any immovahle property. Therefore, paragraph 3(i)(c) of the
Order is not applicable to the company.,

(d) ~ The company has not revalued its PPE or intangible assets or both during the year
Therefore, paragraph 3(i)}(d) of the Order is not applicable to the company.

(e)  No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company as on 31 March,
2023 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act,
1988 (as amended) and rules made thereunder.

(@ The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals
during the year. With respect to inventory represented by project work in progress having
regards to the nature of inventory, physical verification is carried out by way of verification
of title deeds, site visits by the management and certification of extent of work completion
by competent personnel at reasonable intervals. In our opinion, the coverage and
procedure of such verification by the memagement is appropriate. No discrepancies of 10%
or more in the aggregate for each class of inventory were noticed.

(b)  The company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees,
in aggregate, at any point of time during the year, from banks or financial institutions on
the basis of security of current assets. Therefore, paragraph 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not
applicable to the company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, except for granting unsecured loans
during the year, the company has not made investments in, provided any guarantee or security,
to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, our comments
on clause (jii) of paragraph 3 of the Order are as under:

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the company, the company has provided loans to companies,
and other parties as follows:




{v)

v)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(M

(9)

(Rs. In lakhs)

B Particulars Aggregate amount Balance outstanding as
granted during the year | on 31.03.2023 in respect
of these loans
Holding company 1.483.00 2,39565
Other related parties - 589.53
Other company 185.00 185.00

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the terms
and conditions of loans granted during the year to other company are not prejudicial to the
company’s interest. In respect of loans granted to the holding company, there are no terms
and conditions, however, the same being given to the holding company, the question of
our commenting whether the grant of said loan is prejudicial to the company's interest does
not arise.

In respect of loans granted during the year, the schedule of repayment of principal has not
been stipulated, as the same are repayable on demand and as per the information and
explanation provided to us, the amounts have been received whenever demanded by the
company. Thus, we are unable to make a specific comment on the regularity of repayment
of loans granted.

In respect of loans granted, since the repayment schedule is not stipulated, we are unable
to comment on the amounts overdue for more than ninety days and reasonable steps for
recovery as required under paragraph 3(#i)(d) of the Order.

In respect of loans granted, since the repayment schedule is not stipulated, we are unable
to comment on renewal or extension or granting of fresh loans to setile the overdue of
existing loan given to a same party.

The company has granted loan of Rs. 2,985.17 lakhs to related parties as defined in
section 2(78) of the Act, which is repayable on demand and the same represents 93.88%
of the loan amount. '

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, refer note
no. 10.1 of the audited financial statements which provides details of the aggregate amount
of loans or advances in the nature.of loans to promoters or related parties as defined in
clause (76) of section (2) of the Companies Act, 2013 which are either repayable on
demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has complied with the
provisions of section 185 to 186(1) of the Act in respect of grant of loans, making investments
and providing guarantees and securities, as applicable. Further, the provisions of section 186
[except for sub-section (1)] of the Act are not applicable to the company as it is engaged in the
business of providing infrastructural facilities. '

In our opinion, neither the company has not accepted any deposits nor there are any amounts
which are deemed to be deposits. Therefore, question of reporting compliance with directive
issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant
provisions of the Act and rules framed thereunder does not arise. We are informed that no order
relating to the company has been passed by the Company Law Board or National Company Law
Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any Court or any other Tribunal.

: ' _ ..—‘\'\
{..ll M&MBEHSH!F .:;hl
| % : No, 120505 ) Tﬂl

\ /%),

N
\ AN




{vi)

(vii)

We have broadly reviewed the cost records maintained by the company pursuant to the
Companies {Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 prescribed by the Central Govemment under
section 148(1) of Lhve Act and are of the opinion that prima facle the prescribed cosl records have
been maintained. We have, however, not made a detailed examination of the cost records with
a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

In respect of statutory dues:

(a) On the basis of our examination of records of the company, in respect of the amounts
deducted/ accrued in the books of account, the company is regular in depositing the
undisputed statutory dues including goods and service tax, provident fund, employees’
state insurance, income-tax and other applicable statutory dues with the appropriate
authorities. There are no undisputed amounts payable in respect of the said statutory dues
outstanding as at 31% March, 2023 for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable.

As explained to us, the company did not have any duss on account ot sales tax, duty of
custom, duty of excise, value added tax and cess.

(b) There is no disputed liability in respect of income tax or sales tax or duty of customs or duty
of excise or cess other than the unpaid disputed dues of Maharashtra value added tax of
Rs. 191.63 lakhs, as tabulated under:

Sr. Nature of Unpaid Year to Forum where dispute is
No. Dues Demand which it pending
Rs. in lakhs relates
1 Value Added 66.50 2010-11 Jt. Commissioner of Sales
Tax Tax (Appeal)
2 Value Added 125.12 2012-13 Jt. Commissioner of Sales
Tax Tax {(Appeal)
191.62

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of

()

records of the company, there are no transactions in the books of account that has been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the period in the income tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 and that has not been recorded in the books of account.

Based on our audit procedures and as per the information and explanations given by the
management, we are of the opinion that —

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit
procedures, we report that the company has not defaulted in repayment of dues of
loans or borrowings or payment of interest thereon {wherever applicable) to any lender.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit
procedures, we report that the company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any
bank or financial institution or govemment or any other lender.

{c) The company has not obtained a é/’?ﬂ'ﬂ\ [ag @unng the period. Therefore, clause
(c)(ix) of paragraph 3 of the Orderj&sbt apprca‘me\m the company.




()

{xi)

(i)

{xii)

{xiv)

(xv)

{xvi)

(d) We report that no funds raised on short term basis have been utilised for long term
purposes by the company.

(e) The company does not have any subsidiaries or joint ventures or associates. Therefore,
clause (e)(ix} of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable to the company.

H The company does not have any subsidiaries or joint ventures or associstes.
Therefore, clause (f)(ix) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable to the company.

(a) ' The company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year. Therefore, paragraph 3(x){a) of the Order is
not applicable to the company.

{b) The company has not made any preferential allobment or private placement of shares or
convertible debentures {fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year. Therefore,
paragraph 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the company.

(a) During the course of our examination of the books of account and records of the company,
carvled out in accordance with generally accepted auditing practices in India and according
to information and explanation given to us, no fraud by the company and no fraud on the
company has been noticed or reported during the period.

{b)  In view of our comments in clause (a) above, no report under sub-section (12) of section
143 of the Act was required to be filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Govemment.

{c) As represented by the management, no whistle blower complaints were received during
the year.

The company is not a nidhi company. Therefore, clause (xii) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not
applicable to the company.

According to the information and explanations given o us and based on our examination of the
records of the company, the related party transactions covered under section 188 of the Act,
wherever applicable, have been disclosed in the financial statement in accordance with the
requirements of Indian Accounting Standard 34. Provisions of section 177 of the Act as regards
Audit Committee are not applicabie to the company.

(a}  Inourapinion, the company has an interal audit system commensurate with the size and
nature of its business.

(b)  The reports of the Internal Auditors for the period under audit are considered by us.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the period,
the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected
with the directors. Therefore, clause (xv) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable to the
company.

(@)  The company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934, Therefore, clauses {xvi)(a), (b) and {c) of paragraph 3 of the Order are not
applicable to the company.

(b) As represented by the management, the Group does not have any Core Investment
company. Therefore, clause {xvi)d) of paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable to the
company.




(e)

®

(9)

b

(i)

(iv)

W)

The matter described in the material uncertainty related to going concern paragraph
above, in our opinion has an adverse effect on the functioning of the company;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 315t March,
2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors are disqualified as
onh 315t March 2023, from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the
Act;

With respect to adequacy of internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
company and operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report given
in Annexure “B”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and
operating effectiveness of the company’s internal financial controts over financial reporting;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the company has not paid any remuneration fo its directors during the year,

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i) The company has disclosed the impact of pending fitigations on its financial position
in its financial statements. Refer note no. 32 and 32.1 of the accompanying audited
financial statements.

(i) The company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which any there were foreseeable losses.

(i) There are no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund.

(a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested by the company to or in
any other person(s} or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with
the understanding that the intermediary shall whether directly or indirectly lend
or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner by or on behalf of
the company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”} or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of ultimate bensficiaries.

(b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds have been received by the company from any person{s) or entities
including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”) with the understanding that such
company shall whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the funding party
(ultimate beneficiaries) or provide guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate beneficiaries.

(c) Based on the audit procedures performed as considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that causes
us to believe that the above representations given by the management contain
any material misstatement.

The company has not declared or pa|d dividend during the period. Hence, the
requirement of commenting on co _pI:anEe wnth g, tlon 123 of the Act does not arise.
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(vi) As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from
April 1, 2023, reporting under clause {g) of Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable for the year.

For Taishete Mehta & Assoclates
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registratien No. 128285W
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Neelkamal Realtors Suburban Private Limited

Annexure — B to the Independent Auditors’ Report for the year ended 31° March, 2023
{Referred to in paragraph 10(g) under the heading “Report cn cther legal and regulatory requirements”
of our report of even date]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under section 143(3){i) of the Companies Act, 2013
{“the Act”)

Opinion

We have audited the intemal financial controls over financial reporting of Neelkamal Realtors
Suburban Private Limited (“the company”), as of 31st March, 2023, in conjunction with our audit of
the financial statements of the company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the company
has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and
such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March, 2023,
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Management’s Responsibility for internal Financial Controls

The company's Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (“the Guidance Note”), issued by the institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting {the “Guidance Note") issued by ICAl and the
and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statement. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit invoives performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the intemal financial controls system over financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial conirol over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that
{1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonabie detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For Taishete Mehta & Associates

Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 128285W
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ja ner NN S
Manisha Taishete N T
Membership No. 110024 .
UDIN: 23110024BGWPCH2633

Mumbai
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Neelkamal Realtors Suburban Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2023

CIN No. U70100MH2005PTC 154506

All amounts are in INR {lakhe) otherwise statad

Particulars Note | As at 31st March, | As at 31st March,
no. 2023 2022
1. ASSETR
1 Non-current asaets
{A) Property, ptant and aquipment 3 4.94 4.14
{b) Non-current financlal asaets
Others 4 136.71 117.08
{v) Defuned lax ussuts (nel) 5 1,110,20 1,3200.20
1,259.85 1,501.46
2 Curront assels
{a) Inventories 5} 5,246.43 5,255.4%9
{0 Financial assets
(i} Trade raceivables 7 1,000.82 2,780.71
{il} Cash and cash aquivatents 8 424,76 339.25
{iii) Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents 9 250.00 325.00
{iv) Loans 10 2,589.20 1,157.37
{v) Other financiat assets 11 269.38 324.55
&) Current tax assets (net) 12 2216 16.94
{d) Cther current assets 13 2,525.24 3,560.23
12,428.99 13,750.54
Total B o ) o 13,666.84 15,260.00
Il EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 Equity
{a) Equity share capital 14 66,00 66,00
{b) Other equity 15 (4,042.91) (4,267.51)
{3,976.91) {4,201.51)
2 Non-currant liabilities
(&) Fineawsial Habililies
(i} Borrowings 16 . -
(i) Trade payables 17
- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 16.61 15.74
- Total cutstanding dues of creditors other than cf micro enterprises and small 254.66 276.56
enlerprises
{b) Other liabilities 15 45.00 -
(e} Provisions 19 45.64 40.66
361.91 33296
3 Curvent Nahilities
{a} Financial liabilities
(i} Gorrowings 20 1,050.00 B05.63
(i} Trade payables 21
- Total outsianding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 36.03 37.39
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than of micro sntarprises and small 1,366.79 2,393.18
enterprises
{li) Other financlal Hablitles 22 371.8¢ 557.93
{p) Oiher current liabilities 23 8,014,008 B8,775.22
(6} Provisions 24 ©6.463.14 6,459.82
17,301.84 19,128.55
Total 13,686.84 15,260.00
Summary of significant accounting policies 2
Refer accompanying noles. These noles are an inlegral part of the financial statements 11047
As per our attached report of even date
For Talshete Mehta and Assoclates For and on Behalf of the Bo rectors

Charlered@ccountants
Firm Registr ‘olﬁlao 128265W

s

e ,,';\\ Vinod Goenke
Mefifaha A, Taishate gs % Diregtor
Partner DIN; 00029033

fe cashr YO
2] mEMBEN2 [
F{ o 120285W |

&

Mambarship No. 11002

Samir Chohsi
Diraclor
DIM: 00049418

Placs « Mumbal
Data: 29.05.2023

Place : Mumbal
Date: 29.05.2023

Maheth Gandh -

Indapendant Diractor

DIN: 00185638

)

P

Shilpn Eaboo
Company Secretery

Ashok Saraf
Director
DIN: 01627873

S0 N g g Gl i
r

Suresh Singh
Chiaf Finangial Officar




Neelkamal Realtors Suburban Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2023

CIN Mo, U70100MH2005PTC 154506

All amounts are in INR (lakhs) otherwise stated, except equity share and per share data

Particulars Note For the year For the year
no. ended ended
3Mst March, 2023 | 31st March, 2022
I |Income
Revenue from operations 25 2,368.256 3,354.23
Other income 26 415.57 1,009.74
Total revenue 2,783.82 4.453.97
Il |Expenses
Project related expenses 27 1,823.10 2.717.55
Changes in project work in progress 28 {14.59) 48.42
Employee benefits expense 22 274.63 53.99
Finance costs 30 96,71 99.23
Depreciation and amortisation expense 3 0.88 0.90
Other expenses 3 117.74 215.38
Total expenses 2,298.47 3,135.47
M |Profit before tax (I}-(IY) 485.35 1,318.50
IV [Tax expense 5
{a) Current tax - .
{b) Deferred tax 262.06 327.95 |
262.06 327.95
V  |Profit for the year (Ill)-{fV) 223.29 990.55
V1 |Other comprehensive income
A (i) terms that will not be reclassifisd to profit or loss
Remeasurement gaing of defined benefit plans 1.59 {7.70)
{ii} Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss - -
B (i) tems that will be reclassified to profit or loss - -
{il} Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss - -
1.69 {71.70)
Vil |Total comprehensive income for the year (V)+{VI} 224.88 982.85
VIl |Earnings per equity share (face value - Rs. 10 each) Basic & diluted (Rs.) 39 33.83 150.08
Summary of significant accounting policies 2
Refer accompanying notes. Thase notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 1to 47

As per our attached report of even date

For Taishete Mehta and Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration po : 128285W
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Partner
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Place : Mumbai
Date: 29.05.2023
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Neelkamal Realtors Suburban Private Limited

Statament of Cash Flow for the year ended 31st March, 2023
CIN No. U70100MH2005PTC 154506

All amounts are in INR (lakhs) otherwise stated

Particulars For the year For the year
aended ended
31st March, 2023 | 31st March, 2022
{A) |Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax as per statement of profit and loss 485.35 1,318.50
Adlustmenis for:
Qther comprehensive income 1.59 (7.70)
Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost {36.59) {15.79}
Interest income on income tax refund - {0.91)
Depreciation and amortization expense 0.88 0.90
Interest expenses on financial liabilities at amortised cost - 4.52
Unwinding of discount on financial liabilities 96.71 99.23
547.93 1,398.75
Change in operating assets and liabilities:
Change in inventories 9.06 99.37
Change in trade receivables 1,680.89 2,567.04
Change in other financial assets 64.6 61.45
Change in loans granted {1,431.83) {1,157.08}
Change in other current assets 1,034.99 {864.70)
Change in provisions 8.30 (369.60}
Change in other financial habilities {140.53) (247.45)
Change in trade payables (1,048.76) {155.27)
Change in other current liabilities {761.12) {817.75)
(36.45) 544.76
Income tax refund / (paid) (net) {6.22) 2.82
Cash generated from operations {42.67) 547.58
{B} |Cash flow from Investing activities
Interest received 2714 2.50
Fixed deposits {placed) / redeemed during the year (het) 55,35 (27.51)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment {1.97) {0.54)
Cash {used) investing activities 80.52 {25.55)
{C) |Cash flow from financing activitles
Repayment of borrowings {0.46} {1,505.32)
Financial charges 4812 21.10
Net cash generated from financing activities 47.68 {1,484.22)
Met Increase In cash and cash equivalents 85.51 {962.19}
Add: cash and cash gquivalents (opening) 339.25 1,301.44
Cash and cash equivalents {closing) 424.76 339.25
{D} |Cash and cash equivalents includes
Cash on hand 0.10 6.03
Bank balances 309.66 300.22
Deposit having maturity less than 3 months 25.00 25.00
424.78 339.25
Summary of significant accounting policies 2
Refor accompanying notes. These notes are an integral part of the financiall 11to 47
statements.
Notes:

{a) The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the ‘indirect Method' as set out in the Ind AS 7, “Statement of Cash

Flows" as notified under Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2015,

{b) Refer note no.44 for reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities
The above Cash Flow should be read in conjunction with the accompanying, notes

As per our attached report of even date

For Taishete Mehta and Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No ; 126285W
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Manisha A. Taishete

Partner
Membership No. 110024
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half of the Board of Directors
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Director Managing-Diredtor Director
DIN:00029033  DOIN: 02254751 DIN: 01627873
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Samir Choksi ahesh Gandhi ~ Surash Singh
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Director Independent Director Chief Financial Officer
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Company Secretary
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Neelkamal Realtors Suburban Private Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 313t March, 2023
CIN No. UT0100MH2005PTG154506

All amounts are in INR (lakhs) otherwise stated

A. Equity share capital

Particulars Balance atthe | Changes in equity| Restated balance | Changes in equity| Balance at the
beginning of the | share capital due |at the beginning of|  share capital end of the
reporting year to prior period | the reporting year | during the year reporting year
arrors {{Buy-back of
shares)
Year ended 318t March, 2023
No. of shares 6,60,000 - 6,60,000 - 8,60,000
Arnourit 66,00 - 66.00 E 66.00
Year ended 31st March, 2022
No. of shares 6,60,000 - 6,60,000 - 6,860,000
Amount 66.00 - 66.00 - 66.00
B. Other equity
Particulars Reserves and surplus Other Total
Equity component | Retained earnings| comprehensive
of compound income
financlal
instruments {*)
Balance as at 1st April, 2021 785.00 (6,065.75) 30.39 (5,250.36)
Changes in accounting policy or prior period errors - - - -
Restated balance as at 1st April, 2021 785.00 {6.065.75) 30.39 {5,250.36)
Loss for the year - 990.55 - 990.55
Other comprehensive income for the year - = (7.70) (7.70)
Remeasurement gains on defined benefit plan - - 4 -
Balanca as at 1st April, 2022 785.00 {5,0756.19) 22.89 {4,267.51)
Changes in accounling policy or prior pericd errors - - - -
Restated balance as at 1st April, 2022 705.00 {5,075.19) 22,69 {4,267.51}
Profit for the year - 22329 - 223.29
Other comprehensive income for the year - - 1.59 1.59
Remeasurement gaing on defined benefit plan s w = .
Year ended 31st March, 2023 785.00 {4,851.90) 2427 {4,042.63)

(*} Represents equity component of 10.50% redeemable cumulative preference shares.

As per our attached report of even date

For Taishete Mehta and Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm Re;ﬁ;lrwc 120205W
J::usha A Taishete /N

Partner
Membership No. 11002
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No. 120285W )

Place : Mumbai
Date; 29.05.2023

Vinod Goenka
Diractor
DIN:(0029033

Samir Choksi
Director
DiN: 00049416
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Date: 29.05.2023
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Neelkamal Realtors Suburban Private Limited
Notes forming part of Financial Statements

1
1.01

1.02

1.03

1.04

2.01

2.02

2.03

Company background
Neelkamal Realtors Suburban Private Limited (the "company”) is incorporated and domiciled in India. The company
is a real estate development company and at present, it has undertaken development and construction of residential
cum commercial project on the land situated at Dahisar (East) known as DB Ozone (the Project). The land is
acquired by the company on its own account/under joint venture agreement(s). The work of the Project is in
progress as of year-end

The company is subsidiary of DB Realty Limited, which is listed with National Stock Exchange and Bombay Stock
Exchange. The company has its principal place of business in Mumbai and its registered office is at 7th floor,
Resham Bhavan, Veer Nariman Road, Churchgate, Mumbai 400020. The company has its corporate office at 4th
Floor, Wing 15, Gate No.2, Ten BKC, off. N. Dharmadhikari Marg, Kalanagar, Bandra (East), Mumbai - 400 051.

The company's financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of
Directors on 29th May, 2023 in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and are
subject to the approval of the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting.

The company's networth as of 31st March, 2023 is negative by Rs. 3,976.91 lakhs but expects to recoup the same
in its entirety from the balance estimated profits from the project. Accordingly, these financial statements are
continued to be prepared by applying the principle of going concern assumption.

Significant accounting policies, accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions followed in the
preparation and presentaticn of the financial statements

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards as notified under
section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 {"the Act”), the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, the
Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) (Amendment} Rules, 2016 (Ind AS) and other relevant provisions of the
Act, as applicable.

Basis of preparation and presentation

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention with the exception of certain
assets and liabilities that are required to be carried at fair value by Ind AS.

The financial statements are in accordance with Division Il of Schedule 11l to the Act, as applicable to the company.

Transactions and balances with values below the rounding off norms adopted by the company have heen reflected
as "0.00" in the relevant notes in these financial statements.

Current and Non-Current classification of assets and liabilities and operating cycle

All assets and liabilities are presented in the balance sheet bhased on current and non-current classification as per
company’s normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in Schedule (1l of the Act.

Based on the nature of activity and the time between the acquisition of assats for procassing and their realisation,
the company has ascertained its operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of current/ non-cumrent
classification of assets and liabilities.

2.04 Functional and presentation currency

2.05

The functional and presentation currency of the company is Indian Rupee (INR} and all the valuss are rounded to
nearest INR lakhs, except when otherwise indicated. INR is also the currency of the primary economic environment
in which the company operates,

Significant Accounting Judgements, Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions, that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liahilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses for the periods presented. Actual results may differ from these estimates

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed-at'each balance sheet date. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estim/a]{_q_isrébiseg ang future periods affected
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Neelkamal Realtors Suburban Private Limited
Notes forming part of Financial Statements

The estimates, assumplions and judgements that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying values of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below:

Judgements
In the process of applying the company's accounting policies, management has made the following judgements,
which have the most significant effects on the amounts recognised in the financial statements

{a) Revenue from real estate project and project cost (refer note no. 2.11 (a) and 37)
(b) Assessment of the status of various legal cases and other disputes where the company does not expect any
material outflow of resources and hence these are reflected as contingent liabilities {refer note no.32 & 32.1)

{c} Assessment of the recoverability of various financial assets.
{d) Provision for land cost. {refer note no. 33)

Estimates and Assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key scurces of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year, are descrihed below. The company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters
available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future
developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of
the company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

- Project Estimates -
The company, being a real estate development company, prepares budgets in respect of its project to compute
project profitability, The major coimpanents of project eslimates are 'budgeted costs to complete the project’ and
‘budgeted revenue from the project’. While estimating these components various assumptions are considered
by the management such as

(i) Work will be executad in the manner expected so that the project is completed timsly;
(il Consumption norms will remain same;

(iii) Estimates for contingencies; and

(iv) Price escalations etc.

Due to such complexities involved in the budgeting process, project estimates are highly sensitive to changes in
these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

- Deferred Tax Assets -
In assessing the realisability of deferred income tax assets, management considers whether some portion or all
of the deferred income tax assets will not be realized. The ultimate realization of deferred income tax assets is
dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which the temporary differences
become deductible.

- Defined benefit plans
The cost and present valus of the gratuity obligation and compensated absences are determined using
actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual
developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases,
attrition rate and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a
defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive te changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at
each reporting date.




Neelkamal Realtors Suburban Private Limited
Notes forming part of Financial Statements

- Impairment of financial assets

Carrying amount of the assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is any
indication that those asset have suffered as impairment loss. These are treated as impaired when the carrying
cost thereof exceeds its recoverable value. Recoverable value is higher of the asset's net selling price ar the
value in use. Value in use is the present value of the estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the
continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life. Net selling price is the amount
receivable from the sale of an asset in an arm's length transaction between knowledgeable, willing parties, less
the cost of disposal. An impairment loss is charged from when an asset is idenlified as impaired. The
impairment loss recognised in the prior accounting period is reversed if there has been a change in the estimate
of recoverable amount,

- Fair value measurements
When the fair values of the financial assets and liabilities recorded in the Balance Sheet cannot be measured
based on the quoted markot prices in active markots, their fair value is measured using valuation technique.
The inputs to these models are taken from the observable market wherever possible, but where this is not
feasible, a review of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Any changes in assumptions could affect
the fair value relating to financiat instruments

- Impaiment of trade receivables
The company reviews its trade receivables to assess impairment at regular intervals. The company's credit risk
is primarily attributable to its trade receivables. In determining whether impairment losses should be reported in
the staterment of profit and loss, the company makes judgments as to whether thers is any observable data
indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows. Accordingly, an allowance for
expected credit loss is made where there is an identified loss event ar condition which, based on previous
experience, is evidence of a reduction in the recoverability of the cash flows.

- Assessmenl ol expected credit losses on financial assets,

2,06 Measurement of falr values
These Ind AS financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for financial assets and
liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy no. 2,11 regarding financial instruments). Historical cost is
generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

+ Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or
« Inthe absence of a principal market, In the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantagecus market must be accessible by the company.

The fair value of an agset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A tarr value measurement of a nen-tinancial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate
sconomic benefits by using the assst in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use

The company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservahle inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole:




Neelkamal Realtors Suburban Private Limited
Notes forming part of Financial Statements

« Level 1 — Quoted {unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

« Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest leve! input that is significant to the fair value measursment
is directly or indirectly observable.

+ Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is unobservable.

2.07 Property, plant and equipment

2.08

2.09

Property, plant and equipment are recorded at their cost of acquisition, net of goods and service tax, less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. The cost thereof comprises of its purchase price, including
import duties and other non-refundable taxes or levies and any directly attributable cost for bringing the asset to its
working condition for its intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the asset {calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset)
is included in the Statement of Profit or Loss when the asset is derecognised.

Borrowing costs relating to acquisition / construction / development of tangible assets, which takes substantial
period of time to get ready for its intended use are also included to the extent they relate to the period till such assets
are ready to be put to use.

When significant components of property, plant and equipment’s are required to be replaced at intervals, recognition
is made for such replacement of components as individual assets with specific useful life and depreciation, if these
components are initially recognised as separate asset. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred.

Depreaciation

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on straight line method in accerdance with the provisions
of Schedule Il to the Act. The management believes that the estimated useful lives as per the provisions of
Schedule il to the Act, are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be
used.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each
financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Impairment of tangible assets

Impairment of financial instruments {other than at fair value)

The company assesses on a forward-looking basis the expocted credit loss associated with its assets carried at
amortised cost and FVTOC! debt instruments. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk. For trade receivables only, the company applies the simplified approach
permitied by Ind AS 109 - Financial Instruments, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial
recognition of the receivahles.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying values of assets / cash generating units at each Balance Sheet date are reviewed to determine
whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication of such impairment exists, the
recoverable amount of such assets / cash generating unit is estimated and in case the carrying amount of these
assets exceeds their recoverable amount, an impairment is recognised. The recaverable amount is the higher of the
net selling price and their value in use. Value in use is arrived at by discounting the future cash flows to their present
value based on an appropriate discount factor. Assessment is also done at each Balance Sheet date as to whether
there is indication that an impairment loss recognised for an asset in prior accounting perieds no longer exists or
may have decreased, such reversal of impairment loss is recegnised in the statement of profit and loss.
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2.10 Inventories
Inventories comprise of (i) Projact Work-In-Progress representing praperties under construction / development and
{ii) Building Materials representing inventory yet to be consumed.

Project work-in-progress (representing properties under development/construction) is valued at lower of cost or net

realizable value. Direct expenses and construction overheads are taken as the cost of the project. The project costs

comprise of

(a)} Cost of development rights — includes cost of land, including development rights thereof, registration charges,
stamp duty and other incidental expenses.

(b} Construction and development cost — includes cost such as materials, services, depreciation on assets used
for project purposes that relates directly to the project and costs that can be attributed to the project activities in
general,

{¢) Malsoincludes any adjustment arising due to foreseeable losses.
Construction materials are valued at cost

2.11 Revenue recognition
(a) Sale of properties -
Revenue from sale of properties under construction is recognized when it satisfies a performance obligation by
transferring a promised good or service to a customer in accordance with Ind AS 115. An entity 'transfers' a
good or service to a customer when the customer obtains control of that asset. Control may be transferred
either at a point in time or over time,

An entity transfers control of a good or service over time and, therefore, satisfies a performance obligation and
recognises revenue over time if one of the following criteria is met

(i) the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the entity’s performance as
the entity performs;

(i} the entity's performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset is created or
enhanced; or

(i} the entity's performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the entity and the entity has an
anforceabls right to payment for performance completed to date

Revenue is recognised at a point in time if it does not meet the above criteria.

Contract agsets are recognised when there is excess of revenue earned over billings an contracts. Contract
assets are classified as unbilled receivables {only act of invoicing is pending) when there is unconditional right
to receive cash, and only passage of time is required, as per contractual terms,

Contract liabilities are recognised when there is biling in excess of revenue and advance received from
customers.

The revenue recognition of real estate project under development requires forecasts 1o be made of total
budgeted cosls wilh the outcomes of underlying construction contracts, which further require assessments and
judgments to be made on changes in scope of work and other payments to the extent they are probable and
they are capable of being reliably measured. However, where the total project cost is estimated to exceed total
revenues from the project, the loss is recognized immediately in the statement of profit and loss.
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The company uses input methods to measure its progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation satisfied over time. Accordingly, it recognises revenue on the basis of its efforts or inputs to the
satisfaction of a performance obligation relative to the total expected inputs to the satisfaction of that
performance obligation, but excludes from an input method the effects of any inputs that do not depict
the company's performance in transferring control of the units under construction. Further, in the early stage of
construction, the company recognises revenue only to the extent of the costs incurred until such time that it
can reasonably measure the outcome of the perfermance obligation as it expects to recover the costs
incurred in satisfying the performance obligation.

{b) Other operating income -
Other operating income is accounted for on accrual basis except for interest on delayed payments from
allottees, which is accounted for when there is no uncertainty existing as 1o its ultimate collection.

Other income

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial assets
classified as at FVYTPL. Interest income is recognised in profit or loss and is included in the “cther income” line
item.

{c

—

2.12 Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction cosis that
are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value
measured on initial recognition of financial asset or financial liability. The transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are immediately recognised in
the statement of profit and loss.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial instrument and of allocating
interest income or expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
future cash receipts or payments through the expected life of the financial instrument, or where appropriate, a
shorter period.

(a) Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand and balances with banks that are are subject to an
insignificant risk of change in value. The balances with bank are unrestricted for withdrawal and usage.

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are held within a
business model whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the
contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount cutstanding

Financial agsots measurod at fair value

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if such financial assets are
hetd within a business model whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows
and to sell such financial asssts and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest en the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets not measured at amortised cost or at fair value through cther comprehensive income are
carried at fair value through profit and loss.

N\
| memseRsHIP 1{5))
A Mo.128265W )y ]




Neelkamal Realtors Suburban Private Limited
Notes forming part of Financial Statements

(b)

Impairment of financial assets

Loss allowance for expected credit losses is recognised for financial assets measured at amortised cost and fair
value through other comprehensive incoms.

The company recognises life time expected credit losses for all trade receivables that do not constitute a
financing transaction.

For financial assets (apart from trade receivables that do not constitute of financing transaction) whose credit
risk has not significantly increased since initial recognition, loss allowance equal to twelve months expected
credit losses is recognised. Loss allowance equal to the lifetime expected credit losses is recognised if the
credit risk of the financial asset has significantly increased since initial recognition.

Deracognition of financial assets

The company de-recognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the assét
expire, or it transfers the financial asset and substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity.

If the company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to
control the transferred asset, the company recognises its retained interest in the assets and an associated
liability for amounts it may have to pay.

If the company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
company continues 1o recognise the financial asset and also recognises a borrowing for the proceeds received.

Interest income

Interest income is accrued on a time proportion basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and effective
interest rate applicable.

Financial liabilities
Classification as debt or equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the company are classified according fo the substance of
the contractual arvangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issus costs.

Financial Habilitles

Trade and other payables are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs, and are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method where the time value of money is
significant.

Interest bearing bank overdrafts and issued debt are initially measured at fair value and are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Any difference between the proceeds (net
of transaction costs) and the settlement or redemption of borrowings is recognised over the term of the
borrowings in the statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The company de-recognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the company's obligations are
discharged, cancelled or they expire.
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2.13 Employee Benefits
{a} Short term employee benefits -
Short term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the
amount expected to be paid if the company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as
a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

{b} Post employment benefits -

M

(i)

Defined contribution plans -
Defined Contribution Benefit Plans is charged to statement of profit and loss or project work-in-progress, if
it is directly related to a project.

Defined benefit plans -
Provision for gratuity is recorded on the basis of actuarial valuation certificate provided by the actuary
using projected unit credit method.

The calculation of defined benefit cbligations is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the
projected unit credit method. When the calculation results in a potential asset for the company, the
recognised asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits available in the form of any future
refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan. To calculate the present value of
econamic benefits, consideration is given to any applicable minimum funding requiremsnts.

Any changes in the liabilities over the year due to changes in actuarial assumptions or experience
adjustments within the plans, are recognised immediately in 'Other comprehensive income’ and
subsequently not reclassified to the statement of profit and loss. Net interest expense / (income} on the
defined liability / {(assets) is computed by applying the discount rate, used to measure the net defined
liability / (asset). Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised
in the statement of profit and loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changad or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that
relates to past service or the gain ar loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in the statement of profit
and loss. The company recognises gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the
settlement occurs.

(illy Other long term employment benefits -

company's liability towards compensated absences is determined by an independent actuary using
Projected Unit Credit Method. Past services are recognised on a straight line basis over the average period
until the benefits become vested. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in the Statement
of Profit and Loss as income or expense. Obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated
future cash flows using a discounted rate that is determined by reference to the market yields at the
Balance Sheet date on Government Bonds where the currency and terms of the Government Bonds are
consistent with the currency and estimated terms of the defined bensfit obligation.

{iv) Share-based compensation

Employees Stock Options Plans ("ESOPs"):

Eligible employees of the company will receive share based payments in consideration of the services
rendered

On the grant date, the fair value of options granted to emplayaes is recognised as an employee expense,
with a comresponding increase in equity, over the period that the employees become unconditionally
entitted to the options. The increase in equity recognised in connection with share based payment
transaction is presented as a separate component in equity under “Employee Stock Options Outstanding
Reserve”. At the end of each reporting period, the expense is reviewed and adjusted to reflect changes to
the level of options expected to vest. The company recognises compensation expense relating to share-
based payments in net profit using fair-value in accordance with Ind AS 102, Share-Based Payment.
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214 Leases

215

2.16

At inception of a contract, the company assesses whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

As afessor

A lessor shall classify each of its leases as either an operating lease or a finance lease. lease is a finance lease or
an operating lease depends on the substance of the transaction rather than the form of the contract.

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of
an underlying asset. A lease is classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying asset.

Lessor shall recognise assets held under a finance lease in its balance sheet as an asset and present them as a
receivable at an amount equal to the net investment. Finance income should be recognised over the lease term,
based on a patter reflecting a constant periodic rate of return on the lessor's net investment in the lease.

In case of operating leases, loase payments are recognised as income either on straight-line basis or another
systematic basis, Ancther systematic basis is applied, only if, that basis is more representative of the pattern in
which benefit from the use of the underlying asset is diminished. All the cost, including depreciation, incurred in
earning the lease income should be recognised as an expense.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are considered as a part
of cost of such assets less interest earned on the temporary investment. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily
takes substantial period of time to get ready for the intended use. All other borrowing costs are charged to statement
of profit and loss in the year in which they are incurred.

Taxes on Income
Income Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in statement of profit and loss except to
the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

{i} Currentincome taxes -
Current tax is the expected lax payable/recsivable on the taxable income/loss for the year using applicable tax
rates at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to taxes in respect of previous years. Interest expenses
and penalties, if any, related to income tax are included in finance cost and other expenses respeciwely
Interest Income, if any, related to Income tax is included in current tax expense.

{ii} Deferred Taxes -
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amount of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purpases and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes.

A deferred tax liability is recognised based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted, or substantively enacted, by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except, when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temparary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is
not a business combination and, at the time of the transact:on affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss.
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The carrying amount of deferred tax asset is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred 1ax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expscted to apply in the year when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to ftems recognised outside profit or loss is recognised cutside profit or loss. Deferred tax
items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities.

2.17 Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

218

219

2.20

Provisions are recognised when the company has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as a result of a past
avent, it is probable that an outfiow of resources embuodying economic henefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are measured at the best
estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the Balance Sheet date.

When the company expscts some ar all of a provision to be reimbursed, the same is recognized as a separate
asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the
statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions
are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of
which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be
made.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the financlal statements if the inflow of Lhe economic benefit is probable
than it is disclosed in the financial statements.

Both provisions and contingent liabilities are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current
best estimates. Contingent liabilities are not recognized but are disclosed in the notes.

Earnings per share {EPS)

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. For the purpose of
calculating diluted eamings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential
equity shares

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of Cash Flow Statement comprise cash at bank and in hand and short
term highly liquid investments which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value,

Statement of Cash Flows

Cash flows are reported using the ingirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before extraordinary items and tax is
adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash
receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are
segregated based on the available information
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2.24 Commitments

Commitments are future liabilities for contractual expenditure. The commitments are classified and disclosed as
follows

{a) The estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed an capital accounts and not provided for; and

{b) Other non-cancellable commitments, if any, to the extent they are considered material and relevant in the
opinion of the Management,

2.22 QOperating segments
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker. The chief operating decision maker regularly monitors and reviews the operating result of the whole
company as one segment of "Real Estate Development”.

2.23 ind AS modified but not effective as at Balance Sheet date
The following standards are modified by MCA ;

Particulars Effective date
Medification to existing Ind Accounting Standard

Ind AS 101 - First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards st April, 2023
Ind AS 102 - Share- based Payment 1st April, 2023
Ind AS 103 - Business Combinations 1st April, 2023
Ind AS 107 - Financial Instruments: Disclosures 1st April, 2023
Ind AS 102 - Financiat Instruments 1st April, 2023
Ind AS 115 - Revenue from Coniracts with Customers 1st April, 2023
Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements 1st April, 2023
Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors 1st April, 2023
Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes 1st April, 2023
Ind AS 34 - Interim Financial Reporting 1st April, 2023

The company is assessing the potential impact of above amendments on the financial statements. The management
presently is of the view that it would not have a material impact on the financial statements.
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3 Property, plant and equipment

Particulars Tangible ts Total
Furniture and | Office equipment Computers
fixtures
Gross carrylng as at 1st April, 2022 4.97 2.02 6.22 13.21
Additions - - 1.97 1.97
Disposals - - - 5
Gross carrying as at 31st March, 2023 4,97 2.02 8.19 15.18
Accumulated depreciation as at 1st April, 2022 3.52 1.10 4.45 0.07
Depreciation 0.17 0.27 0.73 117
Accumulated depreciation on deletions - - - =
Accumulated depreciation as at 31st March,2023 3.69 1.37 5.18 10.24
Carrying value as at 1st April, 2022 1.45 0.92 1.77 4.14
Carrying value as at 31st March, 2023 1.28 0.65 3.01 4.94
Particulars Tangible ts Total
Furnlture and | Office equipment Computers
fixtures

Gross carrying as at 1st April, 2021 4.97 1.88 5.83 12.68
Additions - 0.14 0.40 0.54
Disposals ~ - - -
Gross carrylng as at 31st March, 2022 4.97 2.02 6.23 13.22
Accumulated depreciation as at 1st April, 2021 3.35 0.84 3.98 8.17
Depreciation 017 0.26 0.46 0.90
Accumulated depreciation on deletions - - - -
Accumulated depreciation as at 31st March,2022 3.52 1.10 4.45 9.07
Carrying value as at 1st April, 2021 1.62 1.04 1.85 4.51
Carrying value as at 31st March, 2022 1.45 0.92 1.78 4.15
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4

4.1

5.1

5.2

5.3

Mon current financial assets - others

Partlculars As at 31st March 2023 | As at 31st March, 2022
Securily deposils 3.7 27.30
Interest free performance refundable deposit 90.00 74.76
Fixed deposif with maiurity more than 12 months (refer note no. 4.1) 15.00 15.00
Total 136.71 117.06

Includes Rs. 15.00 lakhs (previous year Rs. 15.00 lakhs) held as margin money against bank guaraniee given towards

environmental cloarance.

Income taxes

The income tax expense consists of the following:

Particulars

For the year ended
31st March, 2023

For the year ended
31st March, 2022

Current tax expense ! (benefil)
Deferred tax expense / (benefil}

262.06

327.95

Total income tax expenses recognised in the current year

262,06

327.95

The reconciliation of estimated income tax expense at statutory income tax rate to Income tax expense reported in

statement of profit and loss is as follows:

Particulars As at 31st March, As at 31st March, 2022
2023
Profit before income taxes 485.35 1,318.50
Applicable income tax rate 25.17% 2517%
Expected income tax expense 12215 331.84
Tax expense of adjustments to reconcile expected income tax expense
to reported income tax expenses:
Expenses nol allowed for tax purpose §0.60 -
Deferred 1ax not to be recognised 58.99 -
Gther temparary differences 0.31 {3 849}
139,90 (3.8%)

Total income tax expenses recogniged in the current year 262.05 327.95

Deferred tax relates to the followlng:

Particulars

As at 31st March 2023

Dafarred tax assets:

" As at 31st March, 2022

Disallowances under section 40{a)(ia) / 40(A)(7) / 43B 42 67 38.84
Difference between book & tax depreciation 0.30 023
Unabsorbed business losses and depreciation allowance 880.09 1,.070.26
Fair value adjustments of financial assets 1.01 7.83
Allowances for credit losses 221.23 314,54
1,146 .30 1431.70
Deferred tax liabilities:
Fair value adjustments of financial liabilities {27.10) (51 44)
Total 1,118.20 1,380.26
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54

7.4

Deferred tax income or expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss / other comprehensive income

Particulars As at 31st March 2023 | As at 31st March, 2022
Opening balance 1,380.26 1.708.21
Recognised / reversed through statement of profit and loss
Disallowances under section 40(a)(ia) / 40(A)(7} { 438 383 (49.79)
Difference between book & tax depreciation 0.07 (0.02)
Unabsorbed business losses and depreciation allowance (19017} {33.79)
Fair value adjustments of financial assets (6.82) 3.21
Allowances for credit losses {93.31) (272.57)
Fair value adjusimenis of financial liabililies 24.34 24.97

(262.06) (327.95)

Closing balance 1.118.20 1,380.26
Inventories

Particulars As at 31st March 2023 | As at 31st March, 2022

{Valued at lower of cost or net realisable value) (refer note no. 34)

Project work-in-progress 5107.72 5,093.14
Materials at site 138.71 162.35
Total 5,246.43 5,255.49
Current financial assets - trade receivables

Particulars As at 31st March 2023 | As at 31st March, 2022
Trade receivable, considered good (*) 1,978.82 4,030.48
Less: Allowances for credit losses 879.00 1,24977
Total 1,099.82 2,780.71
(*} Inctudes Rs. 944.82 lakhs (Previous Year: Rs. 2,815.82 lakhs) against sale of land.
Trade Receivables Ageing Schedule as at 31st December 2023
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total

Unbilled <6 6 months { 1 -2 years| 2 -3 years| >3 years
months 1 vear

(it Undisputed Trade receivables - - 7397 | 100024 80.31 32.34 2185 1,405.95
considered good
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - - - - - -
which have significant increase in
credit risk
{iil) Undisputed Trade receivables - z e 3 2 - = =
credit impaired
{iv) Disputed Trade receivables - - - - 563 14.40 142.03 162.06
considered good
{v) Dispuled Trade receivables - - - E 410.80 410.80
which have signiicant increase n
credit risk
{vi} Disputed Trade receivables - = = = - =
credit impaired
Total - 73.97 1,000.54 85.94 48.74 771.32 1,978.82
Less: Allowance for credit losses {879.00)
Total - 73.97 1.000.84 85.94 46.74 771.32 1.099.82
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7.2

7.3

74

Trade Recelvables Ageing Schedule as at 31st March, 2022

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total

Unbilled <6 6 months | 1 -2years| 2 -3 years| >3 years

months 1 year

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - . 9968 | 2,893.84 77.85 150.36 189,73 3,411.45
considered gocd
(i Undisputed Trade receivables - - - - - -
which have significant increase in
credit risk
{iiiy Undigputed Trade receivables - - E - - -
credit impaired
{iv) Disputed Trade receivables - - - 14.94 32.26 45.44 171.70 264.34
considered good
{v) Disputed Trade receivables - - - - - - 354 .69 354.69
which have significant increase in
credit risk
(vi) Disputed Trade reccivables - - = : A
credit impaired
Total - 99.68 2,908.78 110.41 195.80 716.12 4,030.48
Less: Allowance for credit losses (1,249.77)
Total - 99.68 2,908.78 110.11 195.80 716.12 2,780.71

The company provides standard credit period to its customers. On non receipt of amounts within the credit period, it makes claim
for interest @ 21%; however, due to uncertainty as regards ultimate collection the same is accounted for on its collection.

The company follows 'simplified approach’ for recognition of allowances for credit losses, which is based on historical credit loss
adjustment duly adjusted for forward looking estimates, the details of which are as under:

Particulars As at 31st March 2023 | As at 31st March, 2022
Balance at the beginning of the year {1,245.77} {2,332.77)
Allowance for credit losses (recognized} / reversed during the year (net) 370.77 1.083.00
Balance at the end of the year {879.00) {1,249.77)

Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars

As at 31st March 2023

As at 31st March, 2022

Cash and cash equivalenls

Balances with banks 39066 30822
Cash on hand 0.10 6.03
Deposit having maturity less than 3 months (refer note no. 9.1) 25.00 25.00
Total 424.76 339.25
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9  Bank balance other than above

Particulars As at 31st March 2023| As at 31st March, 2022
Fixed deposit wilh maturity mere than 3 months but less than 12 months 250.00 325.00
{iefer nole no. 9.1}
Total 250.00 325.00
9.1 Rs, 275.00 lakhs (previous year Rs. 290.00 lakhs} is held on behesi of the proposed saciety.
10 Current financial assets - loans
Particulars As at 31st March 2023| As at 31st March, 2022
{Unsecured, consldered good)
Loans granted to -
- holding company (refer note no, 42) 2,395.65 1,156.65
- a company {refer note no. 10.2} 193.21 =
- Staff 035 B 0.72
2,589.20 1,167.37 |
{Unsecured, credit Impalred)
Loans granted to -
- a related party (refer note no. 42} 580.53 589.63
- Staff 113 1.13
590.66 580,66
Less: Allowance for doubiful loans (590.68) {590.66)
Total 2,589.20 1,157.37

10.1 Loans or advances to specified persons

Type of borrower

Amount of loan or
advance in the nature
of loan outstanding as

Percentage to the total
Loans and Advances in
the nature of loans

at year end
As on 31,03.2023
Related partiea
298517 93.88%
As on 31032022
Related parties 1,746.18 09.89%

10.2 Interest free for a period of six months from the date of granting loan and then Interest beating at 10% p.a. compounded

annually, repayable on demand.
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Neelkamal Realtors Suburban Private Limited
Notes forming part of Financial Statements
All amounts are in INR (lakhs) otherwise stated

11 Current financial assets - others

Particulars

As at 31st March 2023

As at 31st March, 2022

Siatutory and other dues receivable from aliotiees 20317 224 67

Other receivables from -

- Related parties {refer note no. 42) 14.14 57.26

Interest accrued on:

- Fixed deposits with banks 52,07 42.62
269.38 324,55

{Unsecured, credit impaired)

Interest on Joan granted 1o a related party (refer note no. 42) 213.30 21330

Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful laan {213.30) (213.30)

Total 269.38 324 55

12  Current tax assets

Partlculars As at 31st March 2023 | As at 31st March, 2022
Current tax recoverable 2218 15.94
Total 2216 15.94

13 Other current assets

Particulars As at 31st March 2023 | As at 31st March, 2022
Trade and other advances 244 .10 1,184 17
Balances with statutory authorities 516.67 597.74
Deposits with court againsi legal cases (refer note no.32.1) 21537 14362
Prepaid expenses 3036 40.36
Unbilled revenue (refer nole no. 13.1 and 38) 1,518.74 1,594.34
Total 2,525.24 3,560.23

13.1  Unbllled ravenue ageing as of 31st March,2023 and 31st March, 2022
Particulars As at 31st March 2023 | As at 31st March, 2022
Not due Not due
Unbilled revenue (classified under other current assets} 1.518.74 1,594.34




Neelkamal Realtors Suburban Private Limited
Notes forming part of Financial Statements
All amounts are in INR {Lakhs) otherwise stated, except equity share data

14

14.1

14.2

14.3

14.4

14.5

14.6

Equity share capital

Particulars As at 31st March, | As at 31st March,
2023 2022

Authorlsed

7.50,000 {previous year 7,50,000) equity shares of Rs.10/- each 76.00 75.00
75.00 75.00

lssued

6,680,000 {previous year 6,60,000) equity shares of Rs.10/- each 66.00 66.00
66.00 £6.00

Subscribed and paid-up

8,60,000 (previous year 6,60.000) equity shares of Rs.10/- each, fully paid 66.00 66.00
66.00 66.00

Reconcillation of the number of equlty shares and amounts outstanding at the beginning and at

the end of the year:

Particulars Opening balance Frash Issue Closing balance
Equity shares

Year ended 31st March, 2023

-Number of equity shares 6,680,000 = 6,60,000
Year ended 31st March, 2022

-Number of equity shares 6,60,000 6,60,000

Rlghts, preferences and restrictions attached to Equity Shares:
Each equity sharehclder is eligible for one vote per share held. The dividend as and when proposed by the Board of Directors shall be subject to
the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation, the equity
shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the company after disiribution of all preferential amounts, in propertion o their

shareholding.

4,35,600 equity shares {previous year 4,35,600} are held by D B Realty Limited, the holding company.

Detalls of shares held by the holding company

Name of the company

As at 31st March, 2023

As at 31st March, 2022

No. of shares % holding No. of shares % holding
D B Realty Lid 4,35,600.00 66.00% 4,35,600.00 66.00%

Details of equity shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the company.

Name of Shareholder

As at 31st March, 2023

As at 31st March, 2022

MNa. of shares held

% of holding

No. of shares held

% of holding

D B Realty Ltd.

Shiva Buildcon Put, Ltd.

Shiva Multitrade Pvt. Ltd.

Shiva Realtors Suburban Pvt. Ltd.

4,35,600.00 66.00% 4,35,600.00 66.00%
74,800.00 11.33% 74,800.00 11.33%
74,800.00 11.33% 74,800.00 11.33%
74.800.00 11.33% 74,800.00 11.33%

6,60.000.00 100.00% 6.60.000.00 100.00%

Detalls of shareholding of promoters in the company

Promoter name

Openlng no. of

Closing no. of

% of total shares

% Change during

shares held sharas hald the year

Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each

As at 313t March, 2023

D B Realty Lig. 4 35 /0N 4,35,600 (6.00% 0.00%
Shiva Buildcon Pwvt. Ltd. 74,800 74,800 11.33% 0.00%
Shiva Multitrade Pt Ltd. 74,800 74,800 11.33% 1 ON%
Shiva Realtors Suburban Pvi, Lid. 74,800 74,800 11.33% 0.00%
Asg at 31st March, 2022

D B Realty Ltd. 4,35,600 4,35,600 66.00% 0.00%
Shiva Buildcon Pvyt. Ltd, 74,800 74,800 11.33% 0.00%
Shiva Multitrade Pvt. Lig. 74,800 74,800 11.33% 0.00%
Shiva Realtors Suburban Pyt Ltd 74,800 74,800 11.33% 0.00%
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Neelkamal Realtors Suburban Private Limited
Hotes forming part of Financial Statements

Al amounts are in INR {lakhs) otherwise stated

15

151

16

16.2

17

17.4

17.2

Other equity
Particulars As at As at
3tst March, 31st March,
2023 2022
Reserves and surplus
{a) Equity component of compound financial instrument {*)
Balance at the beginning of the year 785.00 78500
Add : recognised duning the year o .
Balance at the end of the year 785.00 785.00
{b} Retained earnings
Balance at the beginning of the year (507518} (6,06575)
Add ; profit for the year 223.01 990 56
Balance at the end of the year {4,852 18) (5,07519)
ther comprehensive income
Balance at the beginning of the year 22686 30.3%
Add: remeasurement gains of defined bensfit plan 1.59 770}
Balance at the end of the year 24.27 22,68
Total (4,042.91) (4,267.51)
Remesenl eyuily component of 10.50% Redeemable Cumulative Prefersnce Ghares, Refer note no. 16 for the terme of redemplion.
Mon-current flnancial liahilities - borrowings
Particulars As at As at
31st March, 3st March,
2023 2022
Unsecured
10,50,000 {previous year. 10,50,000) 10.50% Redeemable Cumulative Preference Shares of Rs. 100/- each, fully 1,050.00 80517
Less: Current malurities of long-lemi borrowings (1,050.00) (90517}

Total

The preference shares are redeemable at any time on or after explry of 3 years from the date of allotment i.e. 07.11.2005 for 10,00,000 shares and
08.12.2005 for 50,000 shares, but not later than 20 years from the dale of allotment. Further, the Board of Directors shall, at its absolute discretion,
can decide the time of redemption afler the expiry of 3 years, whether to be redeemad fully or partially, in one or more lots but in not more than thres
yearly instalments. The preference shareholders would be enlitled to vole only on resolutions which direclly affect their rights. The preference shares
are held by the holding company i.e. D B Realty Limiled.

Arrears of dividend in respect of redeemable cumulative preference shares:
Particulars As at As at
JMst March, JM1stMarch,
2023 2022
Arrears of dividend 1,807 38 1,697 10
Total 1,807.35 1,697.10
Non-current financial liabilities - trade pavables
Particulars As at “Asat
Mt March, st March,
2023 2022
- Total cutstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (fefer note no.17.4) 16.61 1574
- Total outstanding dues of ¢reditors olher than micro enterprises and small enterprises 254,68 276 56
Total 271,27 292,30
Raprasants amonnts retainge as par the termz of the nontract{s) and are due for payment after a period of 12 months from the year-end
Trade payables ageing as at 31st March, 2023
Partlculars Unbitled Not due Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
< 1 vear 1-2vaars 2 -3 years =3 Years
iy MSME - 1661 - - - 16.61
(i) Others - - 362.32

(lii) Disputed dues - MSME
{iv} Disputed dues - Others

362.32

No. 128233W g
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Neelkamal Realtors Suburban Private Limited
Notes forming part of Financial Statements
All amounts are in INR (lakhs} otherwise stated

17.2 Trade payables ageing as at 31st March, 2022
Particulars Unbilled Mot due Qutstanding for Following periods from dus date of payment Total
<14 year 1 -2 years 2 - Iyears =3 Years
(i) MSME 1574 - = = . 15.74
fii} Others - 6.1 - = = 316.11
{iii) Disputed dues - MSME + - # = -
(iv} Disputed duss - Others - E - = = = -
17.4 Details of dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises as per MSMED Act, 2006
Pariculars As at As at
¥st March, 31st March,
2023 2022
The principal amount outstanding at the end of the year (not due) 16 61 1574
Interest due thereon remaining unpaid 1o any suppliers as at 31st March . <
The amaunt of intersst paid Dy the company in terms of seclion 18 of the MSMED Act, 2008. - -
The amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year in terms -
of section 16 of the MSMED Act, 2006
The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payments - -
The amaount of interest acerued and remaining unpaid as at 31st March
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even In the succeeding years, until such date when the
interest dues as above are aclually paid to the small enterprises, for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible
expenditure under section 23 of the MEMED Acl, 2008
Note : The above information is compiled by the company on the basis of the information made available by its vendors and the same has been
relied upon by the auditors.
18 Mon-current liabilities - Others
|Particulars As at As at
Ist March, 31st March,
2023 2022
Security deposits 45,00 -
Total 45.00 -
19 Non-current provisions
Particulars As at As at
¥st March, 31st March,
2023 2022
Provision for employee benefits (unfunded) {refer note no, 41)
- Gratuity 3614 3028
- Leave encashment 9.50 1338
Total 45.84 40.66
20 Current financial liabilities - borrowlngs
Partlculars As at As at
31st March, 31st March,
2031 2192
Unsecured
Current maturities of long-term borrowings 1,050 00 90517
From related party
- from others {refer note no. 20 1 and 42} 046
Total 1,050.00 905.63
20.1 Inlerest @ 12%, repayable on demand.
21 Current financial liahilities - trade payables
Particulars As at As at
st March, st March,
2023 2022
- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and srmall enterprises (refer note no.21.3) 35.03 37.39
- Total outsianding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 1.366 79 2,393.16
Total 1,402.82 2,430.54
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Neelkamal Realtors Suburban Private Limited
HNotes forming part of Financial Statements
All amounts are in INR {lakhs) otherwise stated

21.1 Trade payables ageing as at 31st March, 2023
Particulars Unbilled Outstanding for following periods from due date of fransaction Total
< 1 year 1 -2vyears 2 - 3years » 3 years
{i} MSME E 332 - 092 I 79 36.03
{iiy Others 94055 252 35 3471 2362 115.58 1,366.83
(iiiy Dispuled duss - MSME - - - * = -
{iv) Disputed dues - Olhers = = = -
21.2 Trade payables ageing as at 31st March, 2022
Particulars Unbilled Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
<1 year 1-2vyears 2« 3 years = 3 years
{il MSME - 4567 052 2379 8.01 a7.39
{iiy Others 1,8B7 46 324 50 37.88 24,31 112.01 2,393.16
fiii) Disputed dues - MSKME - . - - = -
(iv) Disputed dues - Others - - -
21.3 Detalls of dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises as per MSMED Act, 2006
Particulars As at As at
31st March, Ist March,
2023 _2022
The principal amount cutslanding at the end of the year {not due) 36.03 a7.39
Interest due thereon remalning unpaid to any suppliers as at 313t March - -
The amount of interest paid by the company in terms of section 18 of ihe MSMED Act, 2006 . -
The amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year in terms 27 a2z
of section 16 of the MSMED Act, 2006.
The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payments.
The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid as at 31st March -
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such dale when the - -
interest dues as above are actually paid io the smalt enterprises, for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible
expendilure under section 23 of the MSMED Acl, 2005,
Note: The above information is compiled by the company on the basis of the information made available by vendors and the same has been relied
upon by the Auditors.
22 Other current financlal liablllties
Particutars As at As at
31st March, st March,
2023 2022
Employees' beneft payables 1393 2558
Amount refundable against cancellation of flats 104 97 11117
Compensation payable (refer note no, 34.1) 105.00 105.00
Other collections from customers lowards society formation {net} 110.93 315.56
Payable o holding company towards employee stock options (refer note no, 42) 36.97 =
Total 37180 557.33
23 Other current liabilities
Particulars As at As at
st March, 31st March,
Sale consideration from customers, pending recognilion 7.892.25 8,750.17
Statutory dues 2192 2505
Total 8,014.08 8,775.22
24 Current provisions
Partlculars As at As at
31st March, st March,
2K e T e ]
Provision for employse benafils (unfundad) irefer note no. 41)
- Gratuity 1531 12.25
- Leave Encashment 5.20 494
Estimated cost of land (refer note no. 34} 6,442 62 6,442 82
Total 6,463.14 6,459.62




Neelkamal Realtors Suburban Private Limited
Notes forming part of Financial Statements
All amounts are in INR (lakhs) otherwise stated

25 Revenue from operations

Particulars For the year For the year
ended 31st ended 31st
March, 2023 March, 2022
{i) Sale of flats 2,121.56 3,212.63
(i) Other operating income
- Flat transfer charges 224 48 118.67
- Interest on delayed payments from customers 22.21 22.92
Total 2,368.25 3,354.23
25.1 Unsatisfied performance obligations on long term real estate confracts
Particulars For the year For the year
ended 31st ended 31st
March, 2023 March, 2022
Long term contracts entered into till year-end 1,02,430.30 1,01,900.38
Unsatisfied performance obligations on iong term real estate contracts 10,696.52 15,903.96
26 Other income .
Particulars For the year For the year
ended 31st ended 31st
March, 2023 March, 2022
Interest Income
- On financial assets at amortised cost 36.59 15.79
- On Inter-Corporate Deposit 8.21 -
- On income tax refund - 0.9
Sundry credit balances written back - 0.04
Reversal of allowance for credit loss 370.77 1,083.00
Total 415.657 1,089.74
27 Project related expenses
Particulars For the year For the year
ended st ended 31st
March, 2023 March, 2022
Project expenses incurred during the year
Direct cost of construction 1,415.50 2,742.51
Construction overheads:
- Salaries, allowances and bonus 22043 175.68
- Contribution to provident fund and other allied funds 11.56 8.81
- Share based payments (refer note no. 40} 42.09 -
- Staff welfare and other amenities 2.83 1.8¢
Rates & taxes 34.93 67.85
Insurance premium 14.50 5.98
Securlty service charges 14.46 22.73
Miscellaneous expenses 66,79 35.05
1,823.10 3,060.40
Financial costs {refer note no. 30) - 4,52
1,823.10 3,064.92
Less: Land cost incurred (refer note no. 34) - {347 38)
1,823.10 2.717.55
Total 1,823.10 2,717.55
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Neelkamal Realtors Suburban Private Limited
Notes forming part of Financial Statements
All amounts are in INR (lakhs) otherwise stated

28

29

30

k]|

Changes In project work-in-progress

Particulars For the year For the year
ended 31st ended 31st
March, 2023 March, 2022
Balance as of commencement of the year:
- Project work-in-progress 5,093.14 5,141.56
Less: Balance as of end of the year:
- Project work-in-progress 5107.72 5,003.14
MNet decreasel{increase) {14.59) 48.42
Employes benefits expenses
Particulars For the year For the year
ended 31st ended 31st
March, 2023 March, 2022
- Salaries, wages and bonus 225.08 50.60
- Contribution to provident fund and other allied funds 10.32 2.79
- Share hased payment expense (refer note no. 40) 3715 -
- Staff welfare and other amenities 1.1¢8 .59
Total 274.63 53.99
Finance costs
Particulars For the year For the year
ended 31st ended 31st
March, 2023 March, 2022
Interest expenses {effective interest rate method)
- On financial liabilities at amortised costs = 4,52
- Unwinding of discount on financial liabilities 96.71 99.23
Interest paid on cancellation of flats = {0.01)
96.71 103,74
Less: Transferred to project expenses - 4.51
Total 96.71 99.23
Other expenses
Particulars For the year For the year
ended 31st ended 31st
March, 2023 | March, 2022
Legal and professional fees (refer note no. 31.1} 45.52 35.28
Rates and taxes 51.67 156373
Advertisement and sales promotion 0.20 2.45
Commission & brokerage 4.70 13.70
Communication expenses 0.81 0,96
Conveyance and travelling 0.97 1.13
Establishment and administrative expenses 13.88 8.13
Total 117.74 215.38

Payment to auditors

Particulars For the year For the ycar
ended 31st ended 31st
March, 2023 March, 2022
- Statutory audit fees 5.00 3.00
- Limited review fees 3.78 3.76
Total N 9.78 6.76
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Neelkamal Realtors Suburban Prlvate Limited
Notes forming part of Financilal Statements
All amounts are in INR (lakhs) otherwise stated
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33

34

34.1

35

36

Contingent liabilities not provided for

Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2023 | 31st March, 2022
Disputed Maharashtra Value Addad Tax {*} 191.63 73843

{(*} Rs. 40.00 lakhs is paid under protest

There are certain an-going litigations relating to the project, the outcome of which is unascertainable. The company has decided to provide
for the liability on its acceptance and does not expect the same to have any material adverse impact in its financial position. Further, in
respect of certain litigations involving RERA, the company has deposited Rs.215.37 lakhs {previous year Rs. 143.62 lakhs) with the Court as
per the directions. No provision is considered necessary as the company expects favourable outcome.

The company is evaluating the cost benefit analysis of the regulations notified under the Unified Development Contral And Promotion
Regulations For Maharashira State (UDCPR) in connection with development of the land. Necessary implications including withdrawal from
rental housing scheme (refar note no. 34.2 shall be made upon such evaluation and implementation thereof including grant of permission.

Land Cost

The land on which the company is developing its Project has been acquired by the company on its own account as well as under joint venture
agreements. As per the joint venture agreements, the company has {o handover agreed constructed area free of cost which represents land
cost and the provision made therefor, including movement thereagainst is as under.

Particulars Amount Provided | Amount Paid/Cost Qutstanding
of Construction amount of
allocated as up to | provislon as of
31.03.2023 31.03.2023
Estimated construction cost referable to the saleable area to be provided by 2,011.65 1,811.65 200.00
the company free of cost to the respective party

In terms of Jaint Venture Agreement, the company was liable to pay compensation of Rs. 20.00 lakhs per month for the delay in giving
possession and accordingly, as upto 31st March, 2013, it paid compensation aggregating to Rs. 425,00 lakhs, howeaver, no recognition was
made thereafter. In the year ended 31st March, 2016 a settliement was reached for Rs. 305.00 lakhs as the final compensation payable,
whereby Rs. 200.00 lakhs paid as interest free performance deposit was adjusted and the balance amount of Rs. 105.00 lakhs, was payable
on or before 31.03.2017, which has remained unpaid. The company does not expect any additional outflow and hence, no provision is
considered necassary to be provided for additional compensation / interest for delayed payment.

The company has entered into an arrangement with the Mumbai Metropolitan Region Development Authority (MMRDA), wherein it has
agreed to construct residential complex of self-contained tenements and provide land, in lieu of the Rental Housing Scheme framed by
MMRDA. In consideration thereof, the company is entitled for additional Floar Space Index on the part of land on which the company is
developing and constructing its Project. Accordingly, the cost of construction thereof, represents land cost in the hands of the company.
Provision in respect thereof has been made as under:

Particulars Amount Provided | Amount Paid/Cost Outstanding
of Constructlon amount of
allocated as up to | provision as of
31.03.2023 31.03.2023
Construction cost towards buildings under rental housing scheme 14,265.33 8,022.70 6,242 62

The provision made for estimated cost of land is classified as short term, as the corresponding effect thereof is included in project work-in-
progress,

The company is legally advised that in respect of land forming part of the Project, possession for which has been obtained by execution of
Joint Venture Agreement, the consideration in respeact of which is 1o be discharged by way of handing over (he agreed square feet of built up
area, is not liable for stamp duty.




Neelkamal Realtors Suburban Private Limited
Notes forming part of Financial Statements
All amounts are in INR (lakhs) otherwise stated

37 The company's estimated total project cost is Rs. 1,14,951.81 lakhs (previous year Rs. 1,14,851.81 lakhs), against which it has incurred Rs.
99,201.34 lakhs (previous year Rs. 97,384.91 lakhs). The major component of project cost to be incurred is as under:

3741

38

39

40

40.1

40.2

Particulars As at 31st March, | As at 31st March,
2023 2022

Land cost represented by construction of rental housing (Note No.33.2) 6,242 62 8,242.62

Unpaid land cost (refer note no.33) 200.00 200.00

Construction costs and overheads including contingency costs 9,301.02 11.124.12

15,743.65 17.566.74

The above estimated total project cost is duly certified by the engineer of the company.

The stage of completion of the project is determined based on the proportion of the actual cost of construction as against the total sstimated
construction cost of project. Accordingly, excess of revenue recognised over actual bills raised has been classified as unbilled revenue
Further, based on expected realisation therefrom, the same has been bifurcated into non-current / current assets.

Earnings per share

Particulars For the Year Forthe Year
ended 31st March, | ended 31st March,
2023 2022
Profit after tax as per the Statement of profit and loss (Rupees) 22329 950.55
Woeighted average number of equity shares {Nos.} 6,60,000 6,60,000
Par value per share {(Rupees) 33.83 150.08

Basic and diluted earnings pet share (Rupees)

10

10

Share based payments

During the year, the group started issuing employees stock option, wherein eligible employees of each entity of the group shall be entitled to

stock oplions of the holding company.

Expenses arising from employee share based payment transaction recognised in the statement of profit and loss as part of employee benefit

expense for the yoar ended March 31, 2023 is Rs. 79.24 lakhs {previous year Rs. Nil).

The details of group's stock options is as under.

Grant date No. of option No. of option Exercise price Vesting period
granted cancelled (Rs.) {months)
30-05-2022 3,32,000 - 41.45 12 - 36 months

Particulars of the options are as helow:

Particulars For the Year ended 31st March, 2023
Number of stock | Weighted average
option exercise price
(Rs.)
Option outstanding as at the beginning of the year = -
Add: Option granted during the year 3,32,000 41.45
Less: Option lapsedfcancelled during the year - -
Optlon outstanding as at the year end 3,32.000 41.45
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As per Indian Accounting Standard-19 "Employee Benefils”, the disclosures of employee benefits as defined in the Indian Accounting

Standard are given balow:
Defined Contribution Plan:

Contribufion to defined contribution plan recognized as an expense for the year is as under.

Particulars

As at
31st March, 2023

As at
31st March, 2022

Employer's contribution to provident fund and allied funds

10.61

110

Defined Benefit Plan:

The company provides gratuity benefits to its employees as per the statule. Present value of gratuity obligation (non-funded) based on
actuarial valuation done by an independent valuer using the projected unit credit method, which recognizes each period of service as
giving rise 1o additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation. The
obligation for compensated absences (non-unded) is recognized in the same manner as gratuity.

Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of define benefit obligation

Particulars Gratuity (un-funded)
As at As at
31st March, 2023 | 31st March, 2022
Define benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 42 53 5510
Acquisition adjustment - -
Interesi cost 250 248
Current service cost 4.88 610
Benefils paid {0.48) {18.32)
Actuarial {gain)/oss 2.02 {2 83)
Define benefit obligation at the end of the year 51.45 42.53
Net Liability
- Currant 1531 1225
- Non-current 36.14 20.28
Expense recognized during the year
Particulars Gratuity {un-funded)
As at As at
31st March, 2023 | 31st March, 2022
Curreni service cost 4.88 610
Past service cost N =
Interest cost 250 248
Net cost 7.37 8.58
Recognised in other comprehensive income for the year,
Particulars Gratuity fun-funded)
As at As at
31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2022
Experience (gain)floss on plan liabilities 399 (2.1%)
Demographic {(gain)loss on plan llabilities - -
Financial {gain) flass on plan liabilities {1.96) (0.66)
Actuarial {gain)floss 2.02 {2.83)
Actuarial assumptions.
Particulars Graltuity (un-funded)
As at As at
31st March, 2023 | 31st March, 2022
Martality table IALM {2012-14) ult. | IALM {2012-14) ull

Discount rate
Rate of escalation in salary

Expected Average remaining working lives of employees {in years)

Withdrawal rate
Age upto 30 years
Age 31-40 years
Age 41-50 years
Age above 50 years

7.30%
5.00%
3.37

26 00%
26.00%
26 00%

5 90%
5.00%
352

26 00%
26.00%
26.00%

26.00%

26.00%

The estimates of rale of escalation in salary considered in actuarial valuation, lakes into accounl inflation, seniority, promotion and
other relevant factors including supply and demand in the employmeni market. |he above intormation (s exiracted trom the report

obtained from actuary.

I MEMBRERS P |
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MNotes forming part of Financial Statements
All amounts are in INR (lakhs) otherwise stated

V. Expected future benefit payments
Particulars Gratuity (un-funded) |
As at As at
31st March, 2023 | 31st March, 2022
Within the next 12 months {next annual reporting period) 15.31 12.25
Belween 2 and 5 years 40.04 35.36
Between 6§ and 10 years 13.25 13.00
VI,  Quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption is as below
Sensitivity analysis indicates the influence of a reasonable change in certain significant assumptions on the outcome of the Defined
Benefit Obligations (DBO) and aids in understanding the uncertainty of reported amounts. Sensitivity analysis is done by varying one
parameter at a time and studying ils impact
1 Increasef{decrease) on present value of define benefits obligation at the end of the year
Particulars Gratuity {un-funded)
As at As at
31st March, 2023 | 31st March, 2022
One percentage point increase in discount rate 52.84 43 87
One percentage point decrease in discount rate 50.14 41.27
One percentage point increass in salary rate 50.53 4163
Ona porcontago point docroaso in salary rato 52,31 4247
One percentage poinl increase in wilhdrawal rale 51.36 4250
One percentage point decrease in withdrawal rate 51563 42.57
2 The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined obligations as itis unlikely that
the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one anclher as some assumplion may be correlaled
Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined Benefit obligation has been calculated
using the project unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is some as that npplied in calculation of defined Benefit
obligation liability recognised in the balance sheet.
3 Sensitivity analysis is done by varying one parameter at a time and studying its impact,
¥Il.  Rlsk axposure and asset liahility matehing
Provision of a defined Benefil scheme poses certain risks, some of which are detailed hereunder, as companies take on uncertain long
term obligations to make future benefit payments.
1 Liabllity Risks
a. Asget-liability mismatch risk -
Risk which arises if there is a mismatch in the duration of the assets relative to the liabilities. By matching duration with the defined
Benefit liabilities, the company is successfully able o neulralize valualion swings caused By inlerest rale movemsnis. Hence
companies are encouraged to adopt asset-liability management.
b. Discount rate rigk -
Variations in the discount rate used to compute the present value of the liabilities may seem small, but in practice can have a
significant impact on the defined Denefit liabilities.
c. Future salary escalation and inffatian risk -
Since price infalion and salary growth are linked economically, they are combined for disclosure purposes. Rising salaries will often
result in higher future defined Benefit payments resulling in a higher present value of liabililies especially unexpecled salaty increases
provided st management's discretion may lead to uncertainties in estimating this increasing risk.
2 Unfuntled plan risk
This represents unmanaged risk and a growing liability. There is an inherent risk here that the company may default on paying lhe
henefits in adverse circumstances, Funding the plan removes volatility in company's financials and also benefit risk through return on
the funds made available for the plan.
Notes:
1 The nbligation towards gratuily is unfunded and therefore, the foliowing disclosures are not given:
a. Reconciliation of opening and closing balance of fair value of plan assels.
b. Details of investmants
2 The obligation of leave encashment is provided for on actuarial valuation by an independent valuer and the same is unfunded. The
amouni reversed in the statement of profit and loss for the year is Rs. 0 45 lakhs {previous year reversal of Rs. 0.91 lakhs)
42  Related Party Disclosures:

As per Indian Accounting Standard 24 (ind AS 24) 'Related Parly Disclosures', the disclosures of related parties and transactions with
them are given below:

T
o
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Notes forming part of Financial Statements
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421 List of related parties with whom transactions have taken place and relationships

Sr. no. | Name of the related party Description of relationship
1 DB Realty Limited Holding company
2 Real Gem Buildtech Private Limited Fellow subsidiary company
3 MIG {Bandra} Realtors & Builders Private Limited Fellow subsidiary company
4 Milan Theatres Private Limited Fellow subsidiary company
5 Mira Real Estate Developers (Partnership Firm) Fellow subsidiary company
<] Neelkamal Realtors Tower Private Limited Associates enlerprise
7 K. G. Enterprises Associates enterprise
8 Aniline Construction Company Private Limited Associates enterprise
9 Conwood Construction & Developers Privale Limited Associates enterprise
10 |Eversmile Construction Company Private Limited Associates enterprise
11 Marine Drive Hospilality & Realty Private Limited Assoclates enterprise
12 |Bamboo Hotels & Global Centre {Delhi) Private Limited Associates enterprise
13 |Majestic Infracon Private Limited Associates enlerprise
14 |Dynamix Realty Enterprises under joint control of the holding company

{Jointly controlled entities}
15 |Prestige (BKC) Realtors Private Limited Enterprises under joint control of the holding company
(Jointly controlled entilies})
422  Transactions with related parties

Particulars

As at 31st March,
2023

As at 3ist March,
2022

Loans taken

= Holding company

DB Realty Limited

- Associated enterprise

Eversmile Construction Private Limited

Loans repaid

« Holding company

DB Realty Limiled

- Associated enterprise

Eversmile Construction Privale Limiled

Interest on loan taken
- Associated enterprise
Eversmile Construction Private Limited

Payment of interest on loan taken
- Associated enterprise
Eversmile Construction Private Limited

Loan given
- Holding company
DB Realty Limited

Repayment of loan given
= Holding company
DE Realty Limited

Trade receivables
- Associated enterprise
Aniline Construction Company Pyt Lid

Reimbursement of expenses incurred on company's behalf

- Associated enterprise
Eversmile Construction Private Limited

1,483 00

24400

1,871.00

1,262.50

209.00

2,718.27

25300

407

1,676.23

51950

3,396.50

4.29
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Particulars

As at 31st March,
2023

As at 31st March,
2022

Repayment of reimbursement of expenses incurred on company's behalf
- Holding company

DB Realty Limited

- Associated enterprise

Eversmile Construction Private Limited

Repayment of reimbursemeant of expenses Incurred on company's behalf
- Holding company
DB Realty Limited

Reimbursement of statutory obligation paid on behalf of the company
- Fellow subsidiary company
Real Gemn Builtech Pvi.Ltd

7934

0.48

7924

0.75

429

42,3 OQutstanding balances as of year end

As of year end

As at
31st March, 2023

As at
31st March, 2022

Loans taken
- Holding company
D8 Realty Limited

Loans granted
- Agsociated enterprises
Majestic Infracon Privale Limiled

Trade payables

- Agsociated enterprises

MIG Bandra Realtors & Builders Private Limited
Bamboo Hotels & Global Centrs {Delhi) Private Limiled

- Fellow subsidiary company
Neelkamal Realtors Tower Private Limited
Interest payable

- Associated enterprise

Eversmile Construction Private Limited

Other payables
- Holding company
DB Realty Limited

Trade receivables
= Holding company
De Realty Limited

- Fellow subsidiary company
Mira Real Estate Developer {Partnership Firm)
Real Gem Buildtech Private Limited

- Jointly controlled entities
Dynamix Realty
Prestige {BKC} Realtors Private Limited

- Associated enterprise

Aniline Construction Company Private Limited
Milan Theatres Pvt Lid

Marine Drive Hospitality & Realty Pyt Ltd

2,395.65

802.83

092
19.47

1210

3697

013

9.36
0.50

944,82
2.53
1.61

{1,186.65)

80283

0.92
19.47

1210

0.46

42 37

013
075

9.36
0.50

2.815.82

161

42.4  The aforesaid related parties are as identified by the company and relied upon by the auditors.
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43

431

Financial instruments . -
Tha significant accounting policies, including 1he criteria of recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are
recognised, in regpect of each class of financial asset and financial llability are disclosed in note no. 2.9 of the Ind A3 financial stalements

Financial assets and liahilities:

The carrying value of financial instruments by categories as of 31st March, 2023 is as follows:

Particulars Note No. Amortised Cost | Carrying amount
As at 31st March,
2023
Financial assets:
Loans 4510 2,72591 2,725.91
Trade receivables 7 1,09982 1,00082
Cash and cash equivalents 8 42476 424.76
Other balances with bank ] 250.00 260.00
Olher financial assets 11 26938 260 38
Total 4,769.87 4.769.87
Financial liabilities:
Borrowings 16 & 20 1,050.00 1,050,00Q
Trade and other payables 17 &2 1,674.09 1,674.09
Other financial liabitities 22 7160 371.80
Total 3,095.88 3,095.89

The carrying value of financial instruments by categories as of 31st March, 2022 s as follows:

Particulars Note No. Amortised Cost | Carrying amount
As at 31st March,
2022
Financlal assets:
Loans 4 & 10 1,274.43 1,274 43
Trade receivables 7 2780.71 2,780.71
Cash and cash equivalents 8 339.25 339.25
Other balances with bank 9 325.00 325.00
Other financial assets # 324 .55 324 55
Total 5.043.94 5.043.94
Financial liabilities:
Bomowings 16 & 20 890563 905.63
Trade and other payables 17 & 21 272284 272284
Other financial liabilities 22 567 33 55733
Total 4.185.80 4185 80
43.2 Financial risk management

The Board of Directors reviews the risk management policy from time fo time and the said policy aims at enhancing shareholders' value and providing
an optimum risk-reward trade off, The risk management approach is based on clear understanding of variety of risk that the organisation faces,
disciplined risk monitoring 2nd measurement and continuous risk assessment and mitigation measures

{A) Interest risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.
The company does not have any borrowings with floating rate of interest and thus sensitivity analysis is nol disclosed,

{B) Credlt risk and default risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial Insirument of customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The
company is exposed to credil risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables, business advances/deposit given) and from its investing
activities (primarily loans granted to refated parlies)

Trade raceivables
Congidering the inherant nalure of business of e company, customer credit risk is minimal. The company generally dogs nol part away wilh ils
assets unless trade recewvables are tully realized

{C) Liguidity risk

The company's objective is to maintain a balance belween continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of various dources of funds. The
company has sufficient from holding company which is éxpected to be rolled over in case of any liquidity gap and ie aleo adequately supported by the
helding company to provids financial stability,
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The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at 31st March, 2023

Particulars Amount payable during below period
As at Within 1 year 1-2 years 2-§ years more than 5 years
31st March, 2023
Liahilities
fit Mon-current:
Borrowings 1,050.00 1,050.00 - . -
Trade payables 271.27 - 271.27 - -
(i) Current.
Borrowings 1,050.00 1,050 00 - -
Trade payables 140282 1,402 B2 - -
Other financial liabilities 371.80 371.80 - -

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of financlal llabllities as at 31st March, 2022

Particulars Amount payable during below period
As at Within 1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years more than § years
31st March, 2022
Liabilities
(i) Mon-current ;
Baorrowings #0563 905.63 = .
Trade pavables 292.30 - 29230 -
iy Current :
Borrowings 905.63 80563 - - =
Trade pavables 2,430.55 243055 = - -
Other financial lizbilities 55733 557 33 - - -

43.3 Capital management
D B Realty Limited, the holding company holds 66% of the equity share capital of the company, accordingly, the managementi of its capital structure is
controlled by the said holding company.

44 Reconciliation of liabllities arising from financing activities

Particulars Opening balance | Cash movement Non-cash Others Total
movement

As at 31st March, 2023

Borrowings 905 63 {0.48) 144.83 - 1,050.00
Total 905.63 {0.46) 144.83 - 1,050.00
As at 31st March, 2022

Borrowings 2,266.09 {1.505.32) 12485 - 905 63
Total 2,286.09 i1,605.32) 124.85 - 905,63

45  Operating seqgments
The company is in the business of real estale development which is the only repottable operating segment. Hence, separate disclosure requirements
of Ind AS-108 Operating Segments are not applicable.
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45  Disclosure of ratios

Sy, |Particutars Formula used Ratlos Variance Reasons for
no. As at 31st March, | As at 31st March, variance
2023 2022
1 |Current rafio (in imas) Current assets 0.72 0.72 -0.14% -
Current liabilities
2 | Debt equity ratio (in imes) Total debt (0.26) {0.22) 22.49% Refer note no.
451
Share Capital
3 |Debts services coverage ratio Earning available for debt 228 .57 -38.13% Refer note no.
{in times) services 451
Debt services
4 |Return on equity {in %) Net profit after taxes - 3368% 1501% -77.46% Refer note no.
Preference dividend (if any) 45.2
Average Share capital
§ |Inventory turnover rafio (in imes) Cost of goods sold or Sales 045 0.83 -28.67% Refer note no.
45.2
Average inventory
6 |Trade receivable turnover ratio Net sales 122 0.93 47.99% Refer note no.
(in times) Average trade receivablas 45.3
7 |Trade payable turnover ratio Net credit purchase + other 0.64 0.9e =34.26% Refer note no.
(in times} eXpenses 45.3
Average lrade payable
8 |Net capilal tumover ratio {in times) Net sales {0.49} {0.62) -22.22%
Working capital
9 |Net profit ratio (in %) Met profit (after tax) 2.43% 20.53% -66.07% Refer nole no.
Net sales 45.2
10 |Return on capital employed {in %) Earning before interest and -14.64% -33.74% 56.63% -
taxes
Capital employed
11 [Return on investinent {in %) income from invested funds NA NA NA -
Average invested funds

451 On account of recognition of interest expense on financial liabllities at amortised cost

45.2 On account of lesser reversal of ECL provision in current year vis-a-vis preceding year.

48.3 On account of realisation of amounts against sale of land and other debtors which resulted inte repayment fo trade payables.

48  Following additional regulatory information in terms of clause L of note 8 and clause {n) of note 7 of Division I to Schedule Il of the Act is
disclosed to the extent applicable / ragulatory in nature.

481  Wilful defaulter

As on 31st March, 2023 the company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bankfinancial institution or other lender.

46.2 Details of crypto currency or virtual currency
The company is not engaged in the business of trading or investing In crypto currency or virtual currency and hence no disclosure is required,

463 Registration of charges or satisfaction with Reglstrar of Companles (ROC)
The company does not have any charges or salisfaction yel lo be registered with the ROC beyond the slatutory period as at 31st March, 2023.
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46.4 Compliance with number of layers of companles
The company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with Companies (Restriction on Number of
Layers) Rules, 2017.

46.5 Utilisation of borrowed funds
The company has not advanced any funds or loaned or invested by the company o or in any other person{s) or enlities, including foreign entifies
("Intermediaries”), with the understanding that the intermediary shall whether directly or indirectly lend or invest In other persons or entities identified in any
manner by or on behalf of the company (ultimate beneficiaries) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of ultimate beneficiaries.

The company has not received any funds from any person(s} or entites including foreign entities (*funding parlies”} with the urderstanding that the
company shall whether, directly or indirectly, lend or, invest in other persons or enfifies identified in any manner whatsosver by or on behalf of the funding
party (ultimate beneficiaries) or provide guarantee, security or the tike on behall of the vllimate beneficiaries.

46.6 Borrowings secured asgainst current assets
The company does not have borrowings secured againgt curreni asgets and hence no disclosure is required.

45.7 Income surrendared cr disclosed under Incoms Tax Act, 1961
The company does not have any transaction which is not recorded it the books of acceunt that has been strrendered or disckised as income during the
year as well as previous year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1981,

46.8 Benaml property
No proceedings have heen initialed or are pending against the company as on 31st March, 2023 for belding any benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act. 1988 and rules made thereunder.

46.9 Relationship with struck off companles
The ¢cGinpany does not have any lransaction with companizs struck oft under sectlon 242 of Compan’es Act, 2013 or section 5860 of Companles Act, 1956
and hence ne disclosure is required.

46510 Compliance with approver scheme(s) of arrangem ants
The company has not ente /ad inle any scheme of arrangerments in terms of sections 230 to 237 of tiw: Act.

47  Figures of the previcus year have been regroupedireclassified whatever n sary te conlorm to the presentatiglh of (= current year.
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